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From: Simsek, Huseyin <h.simsek@houthoff.com>

Sent: 29 October 2020 10:46

To: Recker, Volker <ReckerV@ebrd.com>

Cc: Groot, Jan Willem de <j.w.de.groot@houthoff.com>; Blankson, Cherlene
<c.blankson@houthoff.com>; Thomas Moser <moserthomas@hotmail.com>; Mathias
von Tucher <m.vtucher@danlog.md>; (320010258.LEGAL_A@dms.houthoff.com)
<320010258.LEGAL_A@dms.houthoff.com>

Subject: EBRD / Danube Logistics

CAUTION: External Email. Do you know the sender? Consider whether the email is
safe before opening links or attachments. If in doubt, contact the IT Service Desk.

Dear Mr Recker,

On behalf of I.C.S. Danube Logistics SRL ("Danube Moldova") and Danube Logistics
Holding B.V. ("Danube Netherlands" and together with Danube Moldova hereafter as
"Danube") we would like to draw your urgent attention to the following.

1. Reference is made to:
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e  Share Retention and Participation Agreement dated 12 February 2013, between,
among others, EBRD, Danube Netherlands and Danube Moldova (the "SRP
Agreement");

e the Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity dated 12 February 2013 ("Deed of
Guarantee") between Thomo Invest LTD ("Thomo") as guarantor and European
Bank for Reconstruction and Development ("EBRD") as beneficiary regarding the
guarantee of Danube Moldova's obligations towards EBRD under the USD
12,000,000 loan agreement dated 28 December 2012 ("Loan Agreement") between
Danube Moldova and EBRD;

e the notice of default dated 24 June 2020 ("Default Notice") sent by Danube
Moldova to EBRD regarding the default of Danube Moldova under, among others, the
Loan Agreement and the Share Pledge Agreement (as defined below); and

e the share pledge agreement dated 8 February 2013 ("Share Pledge
Agreement") between Danube Netherlands as pledgor and EBRD as pledgee and
Danube Moldova as the company in which the shares are pledged.

1. Danube Netherlands, Danube Moldova and the EBRD and |.C.S. Bemol Retail
S.R.L. ("Bemol") are engaged in a dispute regarding the enforcement of
Bemol's frivolous claims against Mr Thomas Moser ("Moser") obtained from a
flawed Moldovan judgment, which is currently subject to the review of the
European Court of Human Rights. Bemol is trying to enforce the claim resulting
from the flawed judgment against Moser by way of an unlawful seizure and
intended execution of 100% of Danube Netherland's shares in Danube
Moldova, shares that Danube Netherlands primarily holds for the benefit of the
EBRD on the basis of the SRP Agreement.
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1. Bemol's enforcement is subject to a final review by the Chisinau Court of

Appeals on 3 November 2020, to which the EBRD is also a party to. Given
previous arbitrary judgements of the Chisinau Court of Appeals there is a
realistic and immediate threat that the Chisinau Court of Appeals will confirm
that Bemol can proceed with the execution of MDL 178m of Danube Moldova’s
share capital.

. Please also refer to the Default Notice in which Danube already explained the

situation at that time, including the default under the Share Pledge Agreement
and the Loan Agreement, which entitles the EBRD to take appropriate
measures as deemed necessary and desirable.

. Under the above circumstances, Danube Netherlands will be forced to breach,

among others, the Share Pledge Agreement with EBRD and there is an
immediate threat that the EBRD will lose its beneficial interest in the seized
shares to which the EBRD is entitled to under the SRP Agreement. We
therefore recommend the EBRD to take immediate provisional actions to (a)
secure Danube Netherlands' and the EBRD's joint interest in Danube Moldova
and (b)_to maintain the current status quo between EBRD and Danube without
the involvement of third parties (linked to Mr Rafig Aliyev), no later than 3
November 2020 through:

(a) the transfer of Thomo's shares in Danube Holding BV, the sole shareholder of
Danube Netherlands, to the EBRD. This transfer can be accomplished by the EBRD
enforcing the Deed of Guarantee and requesting the shares in Danube Netherlands
as a settlement of the payment obligation towards EBRD under the Deed of
Guarantee; and in parallel
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(b) the enforcement of the Moldovan share pledge under the Share Pledge
Agreement.

1. With the above measures, Moser will no longer be the ultimate legal owner of
Danube and therefore the flawed grounds of Bemol’s enforcement actions
against Danube Netherlands would be eliminated. As a result the EBRD will be
able to secure its outstanding debt as well as its 65% economic interest in
Danube Netherlands’ shareholding in Danube Moldova.

1. We note that the enforcement measures that can be taken by EBRD under (4)
should be provisional, meaning that the shares in Danube Moldova should be
retransferred back to Danube Netherlands in case that Bemol’s actions are
confirmed to be unlawful by the Chisinau Appeals Court. In any case, we note
that Danube Netherlands will be entitled to the proceeds exceeding the debt to
EBRD if the sale of the shares in Danube Moldova takes place and that Thomo
will be entitled to the proceeds exceeding the debt to EBRD if the sale of the
shares in Danube Holding BV takes place.

1. Please note that we have been requested by Thomo to facilitate the provisional
transfer of the shares in Danube Holding BV to the EBRD in case the EBRD
agrees to proceed with this Dutch asset protection measure to secure the
EBRD's and Danube Netherlands' interests in Danube Moldova.
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We trust that the EBRD will cooperate and take all necessary actions to secure the
common interest of the EBRD and Danube. Any failure to take necessary measures
against the unlawful actions of Bemol will severely harm Dabube Netherlands' and the
EBRD's joint interest in Danube Moldova. We look forward to your response at your
earliest convenience and we are happy to discuss this further.

Best regards,

HOUTHOFF

Huseyin Simsek

Advocaat | Associate

T +3120 605 6929

T +3120 605 6322 (assistant)
M +31 6 8367 6249
E h.simsek@houthoff.com
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www.houthoff.com
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This communication is sent to you from Houthoff Codperatief U.A. This email and its
contents are for the use of the addressee only and may be confidential or privileged.
Unauthorised use, disclosure or copying is strictly prohibited. If you are not the addressee,
please notify us immediately. Houthoff is the trade name of Houthoff Cooperatief U.A., a
Dutch law firm based in Amsterdam and registered with the Amsterdam Chamber of
Commerce as no. 34216182. Houthoff's general terms and conditions, which stipulate a
limitation of liability, the applicability of Dutch law and the exclusive jurisdiction of the
District Court of Amsterdam, the Netherlands, are applicable to all services performed. The

general terms and conditions are available on request and at www.houthoff.com.
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OFFICIAL USE

To learn more about EBRD classifications, visit www.ebrd.com/ic

This message may contain privileged information. If you have received this message
by mistake, please keep it confidential and return it to the sender.
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Although we have taken steps to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses,
the EBRD accepts no liability for any loss or damage caused by computer viruses and
would advise you to carry out your own virus checks.

The contents of this e-mail do not necessarily represent the views of the EBRD.
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